
Legal and Democratic Services

STRATEGY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Thursday 13 May 2021 at 7.00 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Epsom Town Hall

Link for public online access to meeting:
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2448341229821781518

Webinar ID: 566-599-083

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Strategy and Resources Committee 
meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set out in this 
agenda.

Councillor Eber Kington (Chairman)
Councillor Clive Smitheram (Vice-
Chairman)
Councillor Arthur Abdulin
Councillor Steve Bridger
Councillor Kate Chinn

Councillor Nigel Collin
Councillor Hannah Dalton
Councillor David Gulland
Councillor Colin Keane
Councillor Barry Nash

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, email: 
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel: 01372 732000

Public Document Pack

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2448341229821781518


Public information
Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on 
the Council’s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.
Agendas, reports and minutes for the Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app 
for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information 
regarding this Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 
If there are matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that appear to disclose 
confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 the Committee will be requested to consider passing a 
resolution to exclude the press and public by virtue of the private nature of the business to be 
transacted, prior to the discussion of those matters.

Questions from the Public
Questions from the public are permitted at meetings of the Committee. Any person wishing to 
ask a question at a meeting of the Committee must register to do so, as set out below. 
Up to 30 minutes will be set aside for written or oral questions from any member of the public 
who lives, works, attends an educational establishment or owns or leases land in the Borough 
on matters within the Terms of Reference of the Strategy and Resources Committee which may 
not include matters listed on a Committee Agenda.
All questions whether written or oral must consist of one question only, they cannot consist of 
multi parts or of a statement.
The question or topic may not relate to a specific planning application or decision under the 
Planning Acts, a specific application for a licence or permit of any kind, the personal affairs of an 
individual, or a matter which is exempt from disclosure or confidential under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Questions which in the view of the Chairman are vexatious or frivolous 
will not be accepted.
To register to ask a question at a meeting of the Committee, please contact Democratic 
Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 
Written questions must be received by Democratic Services by noon on the tenth working day 
before the day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 29 April 2021

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME  

To take any questions from members of the Public.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

3. PROVISION OF A GYPSY TRAVELLER TRANSIT SITE IN SURREY  (Pages 
5 - 10)

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the capital funding necessary 
for the construction of a gypsy and traveller transit site together with an ongoing 
revenue contribution towards the maintenance of the site. Each of the Surrey 
district and borough councils are asked to make a financial contribution towards 
the site, with the exception of the host borough.

4. LGA FINANCE PEER REVIEW  (To Follow)

This report presents the findings of the Local Government Association’s (LGA) 
Finance Peer Review, and the Council’s arising Action Plan.

5. COVID 19 RECOVERY PLAN: PROPOSED NEW OPERATING MODEL  (To 
Follow)

It is essential that the Council has an effective and resilient officer structure that 
is fit for purpose and aligned to the delivery of Council priorities set out in the 
Vision, Four Year Plan and Covid-19 Recovery Plan. 

This report sets out a new operating model for the Council that will realign the 
organisational structure to the corporate priorities. The proposed model seeks to 
capitalise on the new ways of engaging and working with residents, partners, 
stakeholders and businesses established during the pandemic, address current 
areas of duplication and overlap of roles, bring together related functions, and 
more importantly provide additional capacity and resilience where it is needed 
most.



This page is intentionally left blank



Strategy and Resources Committee
13 May 2021

PROVISION OF A GYPSY TRAVELLER TRANSIT SITE IN SURREY 

Head of Service: Kathryn Beldon, Chief Executive
Wards affected: (All Wards)
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Appendices (attached): NA

Summary

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the capital funding necessary for the 
construction of a gypsy and traveller transit site together with an ongoing revenue 
contribution towards the maintenance of the site. Each of the Surrey district and borough 
councils are asked to make a financial contribution towards the site, with the exception 
of the host borough.

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Agree a capital contribution of £127,000 towards the construction of a gypsy 
traveller transit site. 

(2) Agree an annual revenue contribution of £7,500 towards the maintenance of 
the site.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 To enable Surrey County Council to construct a transit site that will allow 
the Police to invoke their section 62A powers under the Criminal Justice 
and Public Order Act 1994 and help manage unauthorised encampments 
across the county.

1.2 Financial contributions from ten of the district and borough councils are 
necessary to allow the site to be delivered. The host borough will not be 
asked for a financial contribution and the remediation costs of the site will 
be met by Surrey County Council. A site has been identified but is not yet 
confirmed and when delivered will be managed by the Surrey County 
Council Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Team.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Strategy and Resources Committee
13 May 2021

2 Background

2.1 In response to the increased impact of unauthorised encampments on 
local communities in recent years, the Surrey Leaders’ Group have 
developed a gypsy and traveller transit site proposal for Surrey. The 
proposal has been developed jointly with the Police and will support them 
in using their available powers when assisting districts and boroughs 
managing unauthorised encampments.

2.2 The development of a transit site for Surrey is a shared strategic priority 
between Surrey County Council (SCC) and the districts and borough 
councils due to the extra enforcement power available to the Police under 
Section 62A of the CJPOA. Under Section 62A, an unauthorised 
encampment can be directed to the transit site and the occupants 
prohibited from returning to an unauthorised encampment anywhere 
within the borough for a period of three months. This power is not 
available if there is not a transit site within the county which the police can 
direct occupants towards.

2.3 Unauthorised Gypsy and Traveller encampments have historically 
occurred across the county for many years. Enforcement against an 
encampment is the responsibility of the landowner and as a local 
authority, we use Sections 77 and 78 of the Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994. (CJPOA). This process, depending on the courts, usually 
takes up to 10 working days. With the addition of a transit site within the 
county, unauthorised encampments can be dealt with more swiftly. 

2.4 It is anticipated that a transit site will also contribute to addressing the 
needs of the travelling community and help minimise the conflict which 
sometimes arises between travelling and settled communities when 
unauthorised encampments occur.

2.5 Throughout the development of this proposal, Surrey Leaders’ Group 
have held ongoing discussions with Surrey Police who have confirmed 
that they would support the development of a transit site because they 
would be able to better enforce unauthorised encampment activity.

2.6 Surrey County Council would construct the site, deal with the costs of 
decontaminating the land prior to construction and manage the site from 
within their established Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Team.

2.7 Consultation with other authorities who already have transit sites in place 
have informed the proposal to establish a site in Surrey. Discussions have 
indicated that transit sites do provide a noticeable impact on the ability to 
manage unauthorised encampments effectively. West Sussex County 
Council have reported that although the number of unauthorised 
encampments in the county has not declined as a result of their transit 
site, the speed taken to act is much improved due to the increased use of 
Section 62A powers by the Police.

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Strategy and Resources Committee
13 May 2021

2.8 The building of a single transit site consisting of 10 pitches represents a 
critical step forward in providing capacity to address a proportion of 
unauthorised encampment activity. Although the provision of several sites 
dispersed around the county would be preferable, the Police have 
confirmed that they would use whatever site is developed as legally it is 
only the provision of pitches within county boundaries that is necessary for 
the use of s62A powers. 

Transit Site Proposal

2.9 A site has been identified which, subject to planning permission, will be 
developed into a 10-pitch transit site in 2021-22. The exact location is yet 
to be confirmed and the timetable for the site’s construction will depend on 
the extent of remediation required as well as the planning process.

2.10 The site requires significant expenditure on decontamination, but districts 
and boroughs are only being asked to contribute to the capital 
infrastructure costs as the remediation will be met by SCC. An ongoing 
maintenance contribution is also required to support the site in the long 
term. 

2.11 The Surrey Leaders’ Group has agreed that the host authority for the site 
will not be required to contribute, but the remaining 10 district and 
borough authorities will be asked to contribute a proportionate share of 
the construction of the site. The amount requested from each contributing 
district and borough for the 2021-22 financial year is £127,000 towards 
capital costs and £7,500 towards maintenance costs. 

2.12 A joint protocol governing how the transit site will be managed by SCC 
and the Police is yet to be developed, but it is assumed it will follow the 
same terms as those seen in neighbouring counties. It will be important 
that all boroughs and districts are consulted on this protocol and have a 
point of contact within the SCC Gypsy and Traveller liaison team and the 
appropriate Surrey Police task force. 

2.13 Unauthorised encampments can cause considerable distress to many in 
the local community. The provision of a transit site within the county – 
whilst not the cure to all issues around unauthorised encampments – 
would be of significant help in managing unauthorised encampments due 
to it providing the police with extra powers under Section 62A of the 
Criminal Justice and Public Order Act.

3 Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1 Impact Assessment

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



Strategy and Resources Committee
13 May 2021

3.1.1 Epsom & Ewell Borough Council unauthorised encampment 
procedures require consideration of protected characteristics of the 
individuals involved, such as Gypsy and traveller status and 
disabilities and are therefore compliant with the Equality Act 2010.

3.1.2 SCC as part of the process in creating a transit site will undertake 
all the relevant assessments to ensure their statutory duty under 
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 is fulfilled.

3.2 Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 This proposal has been developed jointly with the Police to enable 
their use of more effective powers in addressing unauthorised 
encampments. 

3.3 Safeguarding

3.3.1 There are no safeguarding risks considerations associated with this 
report.

3.4 Dependencies

4.4.1  The proposal proceeding is dependent upon approval of a budget 
contribution from each of the ten district and borough councils.

3.5 Other

3.5.1 None.

4 Financial Implications

4.1 The Council’s capital receipts reserve holds an unallocated balance of 
£2.57m. Contributing £127,000 from this reserve, towards the Surrey 
transit site, would reduce the funds available for future capital schemes to 
£2.443m.

4.2 The Medium Term Financial Strategy includes a commitment to maintain 
a minimum uncommitted level of capital reserves of £1 million.

4.3 The ongoing annual revenue contribution of £7,500 towards maintenance 
of the site could be funded from existing contingency budgets.

4.4 Section 151 Officer’s comments:  None arising from the contents of this 
report.

5 Legal Implications

5.1 A transit site in Surrey will enable the Police to use their powers under 
section 62A powers under the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 
which will help to manage unauthorised encampments across the County.

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



Strategy and Resources Committee
13 May 2021

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this 
report.

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The Council’s Four Year Plan sets five overall 
themes, reflecting the priorities for the Borough until 2040. It recognises 
the challenges, and sets out a road map of how the Council will continue 
to drive forward the work required as efficiently and effectively as 
possible.

6.2 Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service 
Delivery Plan.

6.3 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: It is hoped that 
the creation of a transit site will help alleviate some of the pressures 
around environmental impact of unauthorised encampments across the 
borough.

6.4 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications:  The proposal 
has positive community safety implications in the sense that it sets out a 
proposal which seeks to better address the issue of unauthorised 
encampments within the Borough. 

6.5 Partnerships: The Council has worked with the district and borough 
Leaders Group in Surrey to take forward this proposal which is also 
supported by Surrey County Council and Surrey Police. 

7 Background papers

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

Previous reports:



Other papers:

   

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10


	Agenda
	3 Provision of a Gypsy Traveller Transit Site in Surrey

